
October 17, 2007

Marc J. Fagel, Associate Regional Director

Securities And Exchange Commission

via eMail

RE: SEC Allegations Against Aureal Inc. and Professionals Deemed Responsible 

Or As Principal Under Title 18 U.S.C. §§'s 1001 through 1004.

Dear Mr. Fagel:

   Thank you for your time on the phone today.  As you requested, I'm enclosing a copy of a document

which details some allegations: a copy of my “July 31, 2007 Letter” to the Office of the Chief Trial

Counsel of the State Bar of California (CABAURHBDreq1.pdf).  This letter was a narrative which I

believe is the first and only statement of the “SEC Allegations” as described therein, and neither the

SEC nor any court has investigated or adjudicated same.  This letter delivered documents requested by

the State Bar related to my complaint ("Complaint") against certain attorneys ("HBD") who represented

the public company Aureal Inc. (CIK 0000892433) in their bankruptcy proceedings.

As mentioned during the call, I believe that Aureal committed a series of counts of SEC violations

including criminal violations and identify the following filings ("Filing or Filings") as failing to

disclose the resignation of all directors but one, that a director (at least one) resigned due to an

undisclosed dispute, and the appointment of two directors:  

2000-04-27  000-22626 610099

2000-05-17  000-22626 638310

In addition to the statute references in the July 31, 2007 Letter, pages 5 through 9 focus on the alleged

SEC Allegations starting with the section entitled "Original Complaint's CRPC 3-310 Focus

Emerges As Inextricably Intertwined With SEC Allegations".  

Significant facts which compound the egregious nature of the SEC Allegations include:

• All of the officers of Aureal as listed in SEC filings resigned prior to the Filings.

• Steve Mitchell, a non officer of Aureal was designated by unidentified parties to sign and swear the

first Filing listed above.  Without announcement or explanation, this person identified himself as

the Chief Operating Officer when signing the second Filing.

• I believe that Oaktree et al. is a hedge fund / private equity conglomerate which held a majority

stock ownership position in Aureal, and exerted de facto management control over Aureal, which

caused in part the resignation of the officers and directors.

• An Aureal disclosure in the bankruptcy case more than one year subsequent to the resignations

shows that all directors other than the Oaktree director Richard Masson, resigned in March of 2000.

Furthermore two additional Oaktree operatives Kenneth Liang, and Gloria Noh had been appointed

as directors.  Undisclosed events include the resignation of the directors, the resignation of at least



one director because of a dispute as to the operations of Aureal, and the appointment of two new

directors.  None of these mandatory disclosures where made in either of the above two filings.

• As referenced in the attached 7/31/07 Letter and explained in my Complaint (available at:

http://www.bankruptcymisconduct.com/files/CABAURHBD1v5.pdf and 

http://www.bankruptcymisconduct.com/files/CABAURHBD26.PDF ), there were a number of

potential causes of action by the bankruptcy estate and other creditors against Oaktree which are

commonly described as Lender Liability issues and included the potential equitable subordination

of Oaktree's secured claims against Aureal.  Disclosing the facts surrounding the change in

directors of Aureal and Oaktree's de facto management of Aureal would have alerted the possibility

and supported such causes of action.  I believe that bankruptcy law and California ethics rules were

violated by the contemporaneous failures of Aureal and HBD to disclose the same facts to creditors

which were not disclosed in SEC filings.  Thus, the failures to make the required SEC

disclosures appear to be purposeful, in furtherance of the protection of Oaktree,  and

inextricably intertwined with the failures to disclose in the bankruptcy case.

• I believe that Steve Mitchell was induced to sign the Filings containing intentional factual

ommissions by one or more professionals hired by Aureal, possibly including

PriceWaterhouseCoopers and HBD, for the purpose of protecting Oaktree and ensuring a speedy

transfer of estate assets to Oaktree.  

• I believe that  PriceWaterhouseCoopers was cited by the judge in the Aureal proceedings for

intentionally  failing to make required timely disclosures and was ordered to disgorge fees.

• I seems clear to me that the SEC Allegations are inextricably intertwined with failures to disclose in

the bankruptcy case as well as violations of statutes including bankruptcy fraud, and Title 18 U.S.C.

sections 1001 through 1004.

While SEC violations are always important, I believe that the confidence of the average investor would

be seriously damaged if multi Billion dollar hedge fund / private equity firms were allowed to engage

or induce in violations which have the effect of harming, or hiding facts from, small investors.  The

increasing dominance and role of such firms in the public markets warrants scrutiny.

I hope to be able to assist any investigation that you may conduct or refer.   Thank you for your

attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,

David O'Donnell

917 553-7899 cell

attachments:    DirectorsResignedMarch2000.JPG

    BoardMemberDispute.TIF

TwoDirectorsAppointed.TIF

    July 31, 2007 Letter CABAURHBDreq1.pdf



DirectorsResignedMarch2000.JPG (see also July 31, 2007 Letter CABAURHBDreq1.pdf )

BoardMemberDispute.TIF  (see also C:\DOCS\Aureal\Complaints\CABAURHBD1v5.pdf Exhibit C)



TwoDirectorsAppointed.TIF (see also July 31, 2007 Letter CABAURHBDreq1.pdf )

Following:

July 31, 2007 Letter CABAURHBDreq1.pdf with exhibits
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[X] Form 10-K and Form 10-KSB               [ ] For m 11-K

[ ] Form 20-F          [ ] Form 10-Q and Form 10-QS B           [ ] Form N-SAR

For period ended January 2, 2000

[ ] Transition Report on Form 10-K and Form 10-KSB

[ ] Transition Report on Form 20-F

[ ] Transition Report on Form 11-K

[ ] Transition Report on Form 10-Q and Form 10-QSB

[ ] Transition Report on Form N-SAR

For period ended

Read Attached Instruction Sheet Before Preparing Fo rm. Please Print or Type

     Nothing in this form shall be construed to imp ly that the Commission has
verified any information contained herein.

     If the notification relates to a portion of th e filing checked above,
identify the item(s) to which the notification rela tes:

                                     PART I
                             REGISTRANT INFORMATION

     Full name of registrant Aureal, Inc.
                             ------------

     Former name if applicable Aureal Semiconductor , Inc.
                               -------------------- -------

     Address of principal executive office (Street and number)
     45757 Northport Loop West
     -------------------------

     City, state and zip code Fremont, California  94538
                              --------------------- -----

                                    12b25-1

<PAGE>   2
                                     PART II
                             RULE 12b-25(b) AND (c)

     If the subject report could not be filed witho ut unreasonable effort or
expense and the registrant seeks relief pursuant to  Rule 12b-25(b), the
following should be completed. (Check box if approp riate.)

(a)  The reasons described in reasonable detail in Part III of this form could
     not be eliminated without unreasonable effort or expense.

(b)  The subject annual report, semi-annual report,  transition report on Form
     10-K, 10-KSB, 20-F, 11-K or Form N-SAR, or por tion thereof will be filed on
     or before the 15th calendar day following the prescribed due date; or the
[X]  subject quarterly report or transition report on Form 10-Q, 10-QSB, or
     portion thereof will be filed on or before the  fifth calendar day following
     the prescribed due date; and

(c)  The accountant's statement or other exhibit re quired by Rule 12b-25(c) has
     been attached if applicable.

                                    PART III
                                    NARRATIVE
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     State below in reasonable detail the reasons w hy Form 10-K, 10-KSB, 11-K,
20-F, 10-Q, 10-QSB, N-SAR, or the transition report  portion thereof could not be
filed within the prescribed time period. (Attach ex tra sheets if needed.)

     SEE ATTACHED.

                                     PART IV
                                OTHER INFORMATION

(1)  Name and telephone number of person to contact  in regard to this
notification.

          Steve Mitchell                                (510) 252-4245
- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------
            (Name)                               (A rea Code)  (Telephone Number)

(2)  Have all other periodic reports under Section 13 or 15(d) or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or Section 30 of the Investmen t Company Act of 1940 during
the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such report(s) been filed? If the answer is no, identify
report(s).

                                                      [X] Yes    [ ] No

(3) Is it anticipated that any significant change i n results of operations from
the corresponding period for the last fiscal year w ill be reflected by the
earnings statements to be included in the subject r eport or portion thereof?

                                                      [ ] Yes     [X] No

 If so: attach an explanation of the anticipate cha nge, both narratively and
quantitatively, and, if appropriate, state the reas ons why a reasonable estimate
of the results cannot be made.

                                  Aureal, Inc.
- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------
                  (Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

     Has caused this notification to be signed on i ts behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Date  April 3, 2000  By
      -------------

                   Steve Mitchell, Director of Huma n Resources
- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------

     Instruction. The form may be signed by an exec utive officer of the
registrant or by any other duly authorized represen tative. The name and title of
the person signing the form shall be typed or print ed beneath the signature. If
the statement is signed on

                                    12b25-2

<PAGE>   3

behalf of the registrant by an authorized represent ative (other than an
executive officer), evidence of the representative' s authority to sign on behalf
of the registrant shall be filed with the form.

                                    ATTENTION

     Intentional misstatements or omissions of fact  constitute federal criminal
violations (see 18 U.S.C. 1001).

                              GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS



http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/892433/0000891618-00-002361.txt

4 of 4 7/28/2007 4:00 PM

1.   This form is required by Rule 12b-25 of the Ge neral Rules and Regulations
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

2.   One signed original and four conformed copies of this form and amendments
thereto must be completed and filed with the Securi ties and Exchange Commission,
Washington, DC 20549, in accordance with Rule 0-3 o f the General Rules and
Regulations under the Act. The information containe d in or filed with the form
will be made a matter of the public record in the C ommission files.

3.   A manually signed copy of the form and amendme nts thereto shall be filed
with each national securities exchange on which any  class of securities of the
registrant is registered.

4.   Amendments to the notifications must also be f iled on Form 12b-25 but need
not restate information that has been correctly fur nished. The form shall be
clearly identified as an amended notification.

5.   Electronic Filers. This form shall not be used  by electronic filers unable
to timely file a report solely due to electronic di fficulties. Filers unable to
submit a report within the time period prescribed d ue to difficulties in
electronic filing should comply with either Rule 20 1 or Rule 202 of Regulation
S-T or apply for an adjustment in filing date pursu ant to Rule 13(b) of
Regulation S-T.

                                    12b25-3
<PAGE>   4
                                   ATTACHMENT
                                    PART III
                                   NARRATIVE

Aureal, Inc. (the "Company") hereby requests an ext ension of time to file its
annual 10-K report (the "Report") due to recent unf oreseen events. On March 24,
2000, all of the executive officers and senior staf f members of the Company
announced their immediate resignation from the Comp any. The loss of such key
personnel has forced the Company to seek replacemen t or turnaround management.
In addition, the Company is considering various opt ions for the continuation of
its business, including actions to either sell the Company or its assets or to
wind down the Company.

In light of the loss of senior management, the Comp any has been required to
focus its limited remaining resources on continuing  the operations of the
Company. In order to file the Report in a timely fa shion, the Company would need
to divert scarce resources and personnel from criti cal operational duties and
responsibilities. Such diversion would require unre asonable effort and expense
during this time of transition.

The Company anticipates that it will be able to fil e the Report within fifteen
days from the date originally prescribed for the fi ling of the Report, absent
further relief from the Commission.
</TEXT>
</DOCUMENT>
</SEC-DOCUMENT>
-----END PRIVACY-ENHANCED MESSAGE-----
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Originator-Name: webmaster@www.sec.gov
Originator-Key-Asymmetric:
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[ ]   Form 10-K and Form 10-KSB             [ ]   F orm 11-K

[ ]   Form 20-F       [X]  Form 10-Q and Form 10-QS B        [ ] Form N-SAR

For period ended April 2, 2000

[ ]   Transition Report on Form 10-K and Form 10-KS B

[ ]   Transition Report on Form 20-F

[ ]   Transition Report on Form 11-K

[ ]   Transition Report on Form 10-Q and Form 10-QS B

[ ]   Transition Report on Form N-SAR

For period ended
                 ---------------

     Read Attached Instruction Sheet Before Prepari ng Form. Please Print or Type

     Nothing in this form shall be construed to imp ly that the Commission has
verified any information contained herein.

     If the notification relates to a portion of th e filing checked above,
identify the item(s) to which the notification rela tes:
                                                        ------------------------

- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------

                                     PART I
                             REGISTRANT INFORMATION

     Full name of registrant Aureal Inc.
                             ---------------------
     Former name if applicable  Aureal Semiconducto r, Inc.
                                ------------------- -------

     Address of principal executive office  (Street  and number)
     45757 Northport Loop West
     -----------------------------

     City, state and zip code Fremont, California  94538
                              --------------------- -----

                                    12b25-1
<PAGE>   2
                                     PART II
                             RULE 12B-25(b) AND (c)

     If the subject report could not be filed witho ut unreasonable effort or
expense and the registrant seeks relief pursuant to  Rule 12b-25(b), the
following should be completed. (Check box if approp riate.)

     (a)  The reasons described in reasonable detai l in Part III of this form
          could not be eliminated without unreasona ble effort or expense.

     (b)  The subject annual report, semi-annual re port, transition report on
          Form 10-K, 10-KSB, 20-F, 11-K or Form N-S AR, or portion thereof will
  [X]     be filed on or before the 15th calendar d ay following the prescribed
          due date; or the subject quarterly report  or transition report on Form
          10-Q, 10-QSB, or portion thereof will be filed on or before the fifth
          calendar day following the prescribed due  date; and

     (c)  The accountant's statement or other exhib it required by Rule 12b-25(c)
          has been attached if applicable.

                                    PART III
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                                    NARRATIVE

     STATE BELOW IN REASONABLE DETAIL THE REASONS W HY FORM 10-K, 10-KSB, 11-K,
20-F, 10-Q, 10-QSB, N-SAR, OR THE TRANSITION REPORT  PORTION THEREOF COULD NOT BE
FILED WITHIN THE PRESCRIBED TIME PERIOD. (ATTACH EX TRA SHEETS IF NEEDED.)

     On April 5, 2000 (the "Petition Date"), Aureal  Inc. (the "Company") filed a
voluntary petition for relief under chapter 11 of t he Bankruptcy Code in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern Dis trict of California, Oakland
Division, Case No. 00-42104-T11. Since the Petition  Date, the Company has
continued to operate its business as a debtor-in-po ssession while the chapter 11
case is pending. Specifically, the Company has spen t considerable time and
resources addressing the many pressing issues assoc iated with the bankruptcy
filing, including, without limitation, addressing i mmediate business issues,
transitioning to operating as a debtor in possessio n, negotiating the use of
cash collateral, assembling documents and informati on to prepare Schedules and
enable due diligence by potential purchasers, and n egotiating a potential sale
of the Company's assets. In addition, prior to the Petition Date, on March 24,
2000, all of the executive officers and senior staf f members of the Company
resigned from their employment. Thus, along with th e difficult transition into
bankruptcy, the Company also has been faced with re placing its key management
personnel.

     In light of the recent bankruptcy filing, as w ell as the loss of its senior
management, a diversion of the Company's scarce res ources and personnel from
critical operational duties and responsibilities in  order to timely file the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the "Report") would require unreasonable effort
and expense. As described above, since the Petition  Date, the Company has been
required to focus its limited remaining resources o n continuing the operations
of the Company. Moreover, the Company, which at its  peak employed over 144
people, presently has approximately 32 full-time em ployees, only 1 of whom
performs senior executive management functions. The  size of the Company's
finance and accounting staff also has been reduced,  and the remaining staff must
devote substantially all of its time to the mainten ance of the remaining
operations, preparation for the potential sale of t he Company's assets, and the
administrative burdens of the chapter 11 case. Furt hermore, the drastic
reduction in personnel has required the remaining m embers of the Company's
management team and finance and accounting staff to  assume tasks and
responsibilities previously handled by others. As a  result, the Company is
unable to allocate the personnel necessary to prepa re and properly review the
Report in the time prescribed.

     The Company is submitting a letter to the Secu rities and Exchange
Commission (the "Commission") requesting confirmati on that the Commission, or
any member of its staff,

                                    12b25-2

<PAGE>   3

will not recommend enforcement action against the C ompany if the Company
implements, in lieu of the periodic reports require d under the Exchange Act, a
modified reporting procedure. Absent such relief fr om the Commission, the
Company will endeavor to file the Report within the  fifth calendar day following
the prescribed due date.

                                     PART IV
                                OTHER INFORMATION

     (1)  Name and telephone number of person to co ntact in regard to this
notification.

          Steve Mitchell                                 (510) 252-4245
- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------
             (Name)                              (A rea Code)  (Telephone Number)

     (2)  Have all other periodic reports under Sec tion 13 or 15(d) or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or Section 30 of th e Investment Company Act of
1940 during the preceding 12 months or for such sho rter period that the
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registrant was required to file such report(s) been  filed? If the answer is no,
identify report(s).

                                                               [ ]  Yes  [X]  No

     The Annual Report on Form 10-K was due to be f iled on April 3, 2000, but
     Aureal Inc. submitted a Notification of Late F iling on Form 12b-25 for that
     Report on April 4, 2000 in paper form, and on April 27, 2000 in electronic
     form.

     (3)  Is it anticipated that any significant ch ange in results of operations
from the corresponding period for the last fiscal y ear will be reflected by the
earnings statements to be included in the subject r eport or portion thereof?

                                                               [ ] Yes   [X]  No

     If so: attach an explanation of the anticipate d change, both narratively
and quantitatively, and, if appropriate, state the reasons why a reasonable
estimate of the results cannot be made.

                                Aureal Inc.
- ------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------
                  (Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

     Has caused this notification to be signed on i ts behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Date  May 16, 2000  By  /s/ Steve Mitchell
      ------------      --------------------------- -----------------------------
                        Steve Mitchell, Chief Opera ting Officer
                        --------------------------- -----------------------------

       Instruction. The form may be signed by an ex ecutive officer of the
     registrant or by any other duly authorized rep resentative. The name and
     title of the person signing the form shall be typed or printed beneath the
     signature. If the statement is signed on behal f of the registrant by an
     authorized representative (other than an execu tive officer), evidence of
     the representative's authority to sign on beha lf of the registrant shall be
     filed with the form.

                                    ATTENTION

     Intentional misstatements or omissions of fact  constitute federal criminal
violations (see 18 U.S.C. 1001).

                              GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

     1.   This form is required by Rule 12b-25 of t he General Rules and
Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 19 34.

     2.   One signed original and four conformed co pies of this form and
amendments thereto must be completed and filed with  the Securities and Exchange
Commission, Washington, DC 20549, in accordance wit h Rule 0-3 of the General
Rules and Regulations

                                    12b25-3

<PAGE>   4

under the Act. The information contained in or file d with the form will be made
a matter of the public record in the Commission fil es.

     3.   A manually signed copy of the form and am endments thereto shall be
filed with each national securities exchange on whi ch any class of securities of
the registrant is registered.

     4.   Amendments to the notifications must also  be filed on Form 12b-25 but
need not restate information that has been correctl y furnished. The form shall
be clearly identified as an amended notification.
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     5.   Electronic Filers. This form shall not be  used by electronic filers
unable to timely file a report solely due to electr onic difficulties. Filers
unable to submit a report within the time period pr escribed due to difficulties
in electronic filing should comply with either Rule  201 or Rule 202 of
Regulation S-T or apply for an adjustment in filing  date pursuant to Rule 13(b)
of Regulation S-T.
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